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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: The Committee on

          3  Governmental Operation has sounded and the Committee

          4  on Governmental Operation has been called to order.

          5                 We welcome you on this Monday

          6  afternoon, May 25th, to be the beginning of our

          7  discussions regarding the census. We will commence

          8  with a statement from Council Member Henry, Lloyd

          9  Henry, who has a statement that he is going to open

         10  this hearing with and we will proceed from this

         11  point.

         12                 Approaching the dais at this time is

         13  Council Member Eristoff from Manhattan, who is a

         14  member of our Committee, Council Member Una Clarke

         15  who is from Brooklyn, and I am Council Member Mary

         16  Pinkett who is the Chair of this Committee.

         17                 Council Member Rivera from the Bronx

         18  is here and Council Member Sabini also from Queens.

         19                 We are having hearings because of the

         20  budget, in various parts of this City Hall, so if

         21  you do not see us, or if you see us coming back and

         22  forth, it is because of the fact that we do not want

         23  to be a City who does not bring a budget in on time

         24  and we do want to have a budget but we have hearings

         25  that were scheduled prior to this particular date.
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          2  So, we hope you will forgive us and understand that

          3  we are moving forward despite those facts.

          4                 Council Member Lloyd Henry, please.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: Thank you,

          6  Madame Chair. Good afternoon. I am Council Member

          7  Lloyd Henry from Brooklyn and the Chair of the

          8  Subcommittee on Immigration.

          9                 Last October, together with some 2000

         10  of my fellow colleagues in the Council I introduced

         11  a bill calling for the establishment of an

         12  interagency task force on Census 2000 in the City of

         13  New York. We are grateful to Councilwoman Mary

         14  Pinkett, Chair of the Council Committee on

         15  Governmental Operations, for convening today's

         16  hearing on the provisions of that bill now known as

         17  Intro. 457. It is my understanding that some two

         18  months after the introduction of the Council's bill,

         19  the Mayor established his own Office of the Census

         20  reflecting many of the ideas promulgated in Intro.

         21  457.

         22                 It is my further understanding that

         23  in the past several months the Mayor's Office of the

         24  Census spearheaded by Director Sara Vidal and Dr.

         25  Karen Shaw has begun much of the work we had
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          2  envisaged in our proposed legislation.

          3                 I would like to commend Ms. Vidal and

          4  Dr. Shaw for the work they have done thus far, and

          5  commend the Office of the Mayor for his diligent

          6  attention and action on this matter.

          7                 However, I do not believe that their

          8  efforts supersede the provisions of Intro. 457, nor

          9  do they render this legislation invalid or

         10  redundant.

         11                 To the contrary, I believe that the

         12  urgency with which the Mayor's Office of the Census

         13  has moved to addressed the concerns raised in our

         14  legislation, underscores its importance to all New

         15  Yorkers.

         16                 Once adopted by the Council, Intro.

         17  457 will build upon the substantial work already

         18  being pursued by the Mayor's Office of the Census.

         19                 In addition, it will endow these

         20  efforts with the force of law which only the Council

         21  can provide.  Our legislation also provides for a

         22  representative presence from the Council, as well as

         23  from the Office of the Comptroller and the Office of

         24  the Public Advocate. In this way we ensured that all

         25  Citywide elected officials are fully engaged in the
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          2  planning process for Census 2000. Intro. 457 also

          3  mandates various reporting mechanism that will

          4  ensure that all our elected officials are fully

          5  informed of our progress in designing and

          6  implementing a strategy for maximizing the

          7  participation of all New Yorkers in the forthcoming

          8  census.

          9                 It also outlines a schedule of public

         10  hearings to be held in each of the five boroughs to

         11  promote a heightened awareness of the census and its

         12  significance.

         13                 In addition, our legislation

         14  specifically provides for the participation of

         15  not-for-profit agencies and advocacy organizations

         16  in these deliberations. It is a truly nonpartisan,

         17  all-encompassing proposal that puts the interest of

         18  our City first.

         19                 I believe that Intro. 457 provides a

         20  wonderful opportunity for all branches of

         21  government, as well as a private and not-for-profit

         22  sectors to work together in securing the best

         23  interest of our New Yorkers.

         24                 I have no doubt that under the

         25  distinguished leadership of our chair, Councilwoman
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          2  Mary Pinkett, our Speaker, the honorable Peter

          3  Vallone and the Mayor of our City, that we will be

          4  able to achieve that objective.

          5                 So, once again, I join with Council

          6  Member Mary Pinkett in welcoming you to this hearing

          7  and I would like to turn the mic back to

          8  Councilwoman Mary Pinkett.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you.

         11                 At this particular time we are going

         12  to refer to the Mayor's Task Force. We are going to

         13  ask you to identify yourselves by title and tell us

         14  indeed in your own words and if you have written or

         15  prepared testimony, we would like to receive it and

         16  then we will proceed with your testimony at this

         17  time.

         18                 MS. VIDAL: Good afternoon. My name is

         19  Sara Vidal, and I am the New York City Citywide

         20  Coordinator, New York City Census 2000.

         21                 To my left is Dr. Karen Shaw, Deputy

         22  Coordinator, of the New York City Office of Census

         23  2000. And I do have prepared remarks which I believe

         24  have been distributed to you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Okay, yes.
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          2                 MS. VIDAL: And if you allow me, I

          3  will proceed.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Fine.

          5                 MS. VIDAL: Thank you.

          6                 Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen,

          7  and members of the audience, of course. My name is

          8  Sara Vidal, New York City Census 2000 Coordinator.

          9                 I want to thank the New York City

         10  Council and the members of the Committee on

         11  Governmental Operations for inviting the Office of

         12  New York City Census 2000, Office of the Mayor, to

         13  speak to you on activities in New York City

         14  surrounding Census 2000.

         15                 As you may know, the census is a

         16  count of all residents which occurs every ten years.

         17  This process has been in existence since 1790. The

         18  most recent census took place in 1990. What is the

         19  importance of the Census to New York City? How are

         20  we addressing the undercount? Why should everyone be

         21  concerned about the results of the census?

         22                 By the end of my presentation I hope

         23  that these questions are answered to your

         24  satisfaction.

         25                 The Census has been called by some
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          2  the greatest peace time mobilization. From my

          3  vantage point as the New York City Census 2000

          4  Coordinator, I can say that we are working with

          5  every City agency and community with boroughwide,

          6  complete count committees and eagerly wait to work

          7  with the City Council to create an army of workers

          8  to promote the importance of Census 2000.

          9                 Census 2000 will be the information

         10  cornerstone for the next century. While the primary

         11  reason for the collection of census data is the

         12  apportionment of representation in Congress, the

         13  data also provides the funding basis for education,

         14  health care, the environment, transportation, job

         15  training, unemployment, services to children and the

         16  elderly, housing and a variety of other programs

         17  that affect every individual in every community in

         18  the nation.

         19                 Dr. Kenneth Pruitt (phonetic),

         20  director of the Census Bureau, states that based on

         21  census data, $190 billion will be allocated to

         22  federal, state and local projects.

         23                 As you know, the Census is conducted

         24  by the use of a questionnaire form. The census form

         25  will be distributed via the postal service on March
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          2  1, Year 2000.

          3                 The City of New York, through our

          4  Office and the Department of City Planning, have

          5  worked to provide the US Census Bureau with the most

          6  comprehensive data, including addresses and

          7  demographic data on households.

          8                 The outcome of this effort ensures

          9  that every community will be properly described to

         10  the Census Bureau for inclusion in the 2000 Census.

         11                 The 1990 Census failed to accurately

         12  count New York City's population. This seriously

         13  shortchanged the federal funding New York City ought

         14  to have received during the past decade.

         15                 In effect, New York City was required

         16  to utilize funds for school, roads, health

         17  facilities, housing and other important services for

         18  people missed in the 1990 census count.

         19                 New York City is unique in its

         20  composition. Many people from every country, people

         21  who speak many languages, many cultures and

         22  experiences with various forms of governing, many

         23  new participants in our democracy.

         24                 In short, New York City is the

         25  microcosm of the world.
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          2                 On July 29th, 1996, New York City,

          3  Mayor Rudolph Giuliani, joined with the federal

          4  officials at a town meeting to announce his support

          5  for the Census Bureau's approach to the upcoming

          6  2000 Decennial Census - insuring maximum accuracy,

          7  cost effectiveness, and timeliness.

          8                 Mayor Giuliani emphasized the fact

          9  that fairness will be an essential feature of the

         10  new census. New York City and all of our nation's

         11  cities have for too long suffered from undercounts

         12  that have denied us political representation and

         13  federal resources.

         14                 Working with the federal government,

         15  the City is committed to helping prepare effectively

         16  for the Year 2000 census.

         17                 The City's commitment to this end

         18  continues. Mayor Rudolph W. Giuliani, and Deputy

         19  Mayor Rudy Washington, established the Office of New

         20  York City's Census 2000 to address the issues that

         21  affect New York City's complete count. We, as a

         22  City, have become partners with the federal

         23  government to advance the importance of Census 2000.

         24                 We, and the Department of City

         25  Planning, meet regularly with the regional Census
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          2  Bureau office and monthly with the secretary of

          3  Commerce's National Census Advisory Committees.

          4                 New York City Census 2000 is an

          5  advocate before the federal government for the needs

          6  of New York City in this Census.

          7                 We are meeting monthly with 70 City

          8  agencies in an interagency Task Force on Census 2000

          9  to promote Census awareness activities through every

         10  network these City agencies have.

         11                 We have further established four

         12  subcommittees, Education Outreach, Media, Census

         13  Summer and special places populations.

         14                 New York City Census 2000 honors and

         15  will continue to build on the work of the complete

         16  count committees established by the Borough

         17  Presidents. We attend their monthly meetings and

         18  have and will continue to participate in numerous

         19  forums throughout the boroughs.

         20                 We are meeting with umbrella advocacy

         21  agencies throughout New York City. We have met with

         22  the business community through the BIDS and have

         23  established contact with private businesses

         24  committed to helping New York City disseminate

         25  information to the residence on the importance of
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          2  Census 2000.

          3                 We are in constant communication with

          4  other major cities in this country to gather all of

          5  the data that could affect New York City.

          6                 We are confident that the census

          7  plans for New York City far exceed other localities.

          8                 New York City Census 2000 has been

          9  invited and has participated in a statewide effort

         10  for Census 2000.

         11                 Many of our ideas have been accepted

         12  for use statewide, and we meet regularly to discuss

         13  our joint efforts.

         14                 A complete enumeration of New York

         15  City can happen with the cooperation of all of its

         16  residents. We are encouraging City agencies to

         17  publish and distribute literature, educate

         18  constituent organizations and solicit volunteers for

         19  a massive census awareness effort.

         20                 Every Council Member has invaluable

         21  resources that can further the contacts with block

         22  associations, civic groups, social clubs and

         23  religious organizations on the importance of the

         24  Census. The Census is a grassroots effort. We have

         25  asked every block and every building to assign a
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          2  census captain to knock on every door on Census day,

          3  April 1, Year 2000, to remind neighbors that

          4  completing the census form is very important.

          5                 Completing the census form is a civic

          6  duty. New York City is richer for having a City

          7  Council that wants to participate actively in the

          8  census effort.

          9                 The brief outline that I have

         10  presented to you today highlights activities and

         11  contacts made by New York City Census 2000, Office

         12  of the Mayor, since December 1998.

         13                 I welcome any questions you may have.

         14  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: I would like to

         16  thank you for your testimony. Dr. Shaw, would you

         17  like to comment further?

         18                 DR. SHAW: No, I am here with Sara.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: All right. What

         20  I gather, and let me just talk off of the top of my

         21  head, there was the Census which used to be, and

         22  there is now a new focus, a new direction for the

         23  census. As the kids would say, in the olden days

         24  somebody knocked on your door and they filled out a

         25  form, if they let you in, cooperated with you, and
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          2  that was a census. This time is it going to be that

          3  way or is it going to be different?

          4                 MS. VIDAL: This time the census is

          5  being done by a mail delivery system. Everyone's

          6  address is on a master list, and the City of New

          7  York, through our office and the Department of City

          8  Planning, have enhanced that list to include some of

          9  the individuals that have been left out in 1990.

         10  They will all, everyone ought to receive a form in

         11  the mail by March 1st, Year 2000, and they are to be

         12  returned by April 1st, Year 2000.

         13                 I further gather, though, since we,

         14  according to what I have read and heard and seen,

         15  have alleged gotten government off our back and now

         16  we are in charge, they send us the money, we realize

         17  now that we must do what we have to do in order to

         18  ensure that we receive the dollars that we are e

         19  entitled to; is that correct?

         20                 MS. VIDAL: That is correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: So that if we

         22  fail at this census data, this census enumeration,

         23  we affect our own budget, our ability to provide

         24  services, our ability to function as a City; would I

         25  be misstating the facts?
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          2                 MS. VIDAL: You are correct?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Okay. So, what

          4  we are talking about then is a cooperative effort

          5  between City and citizens, government and citizens,

          6  in order that the City might indeed be in business

          7  and present to the federal government a bill and say

          8  you owe me X number of billions of dollars because I

          9  have Y number of people for which you owe me

         10  dollars?

         11                 MS. VIDAL: Council Member Pinkett,

         12  you are correct, but I would further describe this

         13  as a partnership with the federal government Census

         14  Bureau to make sure that the resources that they

         15  have to conduct the census are spent here so that we

         16  can have an accurate census, and that not only that

         17  they spent them here, but that they received our

         18  input so that they will know where to go to get the

         19  completions that we need and then the end product

         20  would be, yes, that we will get the funds that are

         21  due us as a City.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: All right.

         23  Hearing that, I would like to know, because you make

         24  reference to the 1990 Census, we don't know what the

         25  future will project, we do know that there has been
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          2  a tremendous undercount from the 1990 census and the

          3  census before that, and based upon those failings,

          4  we are very concerned about what might happen if

          5  this is not successful; is that correct?

          6                 MS. VIDAL: Well, you are correct that

          7  there have been undercounts in the past, and that

          8  from those lessons we have learned that we have to

          9  worry about different communities that have been

         10  undercounted, and we are using our office to

         11  outreach to these communities.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Have we learned

         13  from the undercount the dollars that we lost? Have

         14  we an estimated figure of the loss from 1990 because

         15  of the undercount?

         16                 MS. VIDAL: Unfortunately what happens

         17  is that giving out one figure does not give the

         18  complete picture.

         19                 If we look at the ramifications of a

         20  bad census, the fact that we do not get X amount of

         21  money does not reflect the fact that some businesses

         22  who would want to invest in a community and use

         23  census data, and therefore go elsewhere to invest

         24  their money, that is not calculated in the amounts

         25  that are being turned around today.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: But, however, if

          3  they see the difference in terms of the growth in

          4  this City since 1990, they might want to invest by

          5  saying what a tremendous turn-around, this City is

          6  going forward. Look what 1990 had and look where

          7  they are in 1999. So, it could be a reverse

          8  situation, could it not?

          9                 MS. VIDAL: I think that this City has

         10  done a great job of promoting itself, yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: So then those

         12  figures would not necessarily work to the

         13  disadvantage of the City, it indeed might prove that

         14  we are miracle workers in this City.

         15                 MS. VIDAL: Together I think we can

         16  work miracles.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Pardon me?

         18                 MS. VIDAL: I think that together we

         19  can work miracles. I believe in miracles.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: But I am saying

         21  it would also prove that there was a possibility of

         22  doing more had we had more and that we were denied

         23  additional dollars that we were entitled to and we

         24  don't want to have that happen again.

         25                 MS. VIDAL: That is correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: And so what we

          3  are talking about using it not as a weapon against

          4  each other, but as a benchmark to look forward to?

          5                 MS. VIDAL: Absolutely.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: So, you would

          7  not have those figures available?

          8                 MS. VIDAL: I do not have the figures,

          9  as I said, with this totality.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: But you have an

         11  estimate?

         12                 MS. VIDAL: Yes, we do.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Could you

         14  provide us with that estimate?

         15                 MS. VIDAL: Yes, we will do so for

         16  you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: All right, thank

         18  you. We would appreciate that.

         19                 Also, could you give us an

         20  approximate estimate as to the number of people we

         21  think -- we know there is no absolute figure that we

         22  might all agree upon, but what we estimate to be the

         23  undercount for that time so that we have at least,

         24  again, a benchmark in which we are saying we don't

         25  want to fall below this, we want to go beyond that
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          2  point. We have got to reach an objective.

          3                 MS. VIDAL: Okay, there are two

          4  figures that are discussed. The most frequently used

          5  is 245,000 undercounted. There is another figure of

          6  272,000 that the leadership Conference of the US has

          7  produced. We feel that the undercount is definitely

          8  within that range and could be higher.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Okay, fine.

         10                 So, what we are saying is if it could

         11  be higher, then we certainly are going to move

         12  forward to exceeding that 272,000 mark in terms of

         13  the undercount?

         14                 MS. VIDAL: As far as getting them to

         15  complete forms, that is our goal.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: And we have

         17  taken all of the precautions. In looking through

         18  your testimony, you mention the fact of BIDs and

         19  using that with the business communities in order to

         20  ascertain what the strength of a community is in

         21  order to get information properly. What about

         22  communities where there are no BIDs, where there are

         23  no strong business communities?  What will be your

         24  resource there?

         25                 MS. VIDAL: Well, the BIDs that we are
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          2  speaking of is the BIDs organization where you have

          3  managers for all of the BIDs in the City of New

          4  York, we are using them as a vehicle but it is not

          5  the sole source of contact with the different

          6  communities. We are reaching out through community

          7  boards, and we are going out through advocacy

          8  agencies --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: You mean those

         10  two members that work in the community board, or the

         11  three?

         12                 MS. VIDAL: I understand that they

         13  vary by community.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Not that much.

         15                 Go ahead.

         16                 MS. VIDAL: I would love whatever

         17  information you have that I can use to outreach to

         18  your community.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Well, I think

         20  that is why Council members will be invaluable,

         21  because I think that is something that we know and

         22  we will certainly be helpful with, but I think we

         23  are talking about reaching to the strength of the

         24  community and that is what you are referring to, I

         25  am sure.
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          2                 MS. VIDAL: Yes.

          3                 And also, we have, through our

          4  agencies, like HRA, New York City Housing Authority

          5  and other --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: But HRA now is

          7  not the HRA that you used to go to and sit there all

          8  day and someone had an opportunity to talk to the

          9  person who sat next to them. Those are now

         10  employment centers.

         11                 MS. VIDAL: Right, and we are speaking

         12  of --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: And you don't

         14  have any time to sit and talk to anybody.

         15                 MS. VIDAL: Any place where there is a

         16  contact with constituencies, we have asked the

         17  agencies to use that opportunity, however short, to

         18  give them a pamphlet, a flyer, on the census and the

         19  importance of their continuing to receive those

         20  services as a benefit of completing your census

         21  form.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Okay.

         23                 Other than with City agencies, are

         24  you working with not-for-profit agencies as well?

         25                 MS. VIDAL: Yes, we are. We have been

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            23

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  approached by many and we have also reached out to

          3  many non-profit agencies.

          4                 We also would like to say that our

          5  record is pretty extensive as far as outreach, but

          6  it is not complete yet, and we realize there are

          7  many more individuals and agencies that we have to

          8  reach out to.

          9                 But, for example, we have reached out

         10  to Con Edison, and we have made presentations to

         11  their managers. Currently they are arranging

         12  meetings with businesses in their respective

         13  boroughs and with the community advocacy groups that

         14  meet on Con Ed issues to discuss census, and not

         15  only that, they have decided to include notes or

         16  drop in articles in senior magazines from Con Ed,

         17  and their monthly bill magazine that they have from

         18  now through April 2000. That is only one example of

         19  the non-for-profits that we have reached out for --

         20  not, the profit-making, excuse me.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: I wonder, how

         22  many names do you have on your mailing list so far,

         23  approximately?

         24                 MS. VIDAL: The mailing list for the

         25  interagency council has 70 plus, because we have
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          2  some agencies that have more than one

          3  representative, so that is our monthly mailing to

          4  the agencies.

          5                 Now, as far as the other agencies, we

          6  don't have a full database for them as yet. We are

          7  constantly on the phone, we have loads of letters

          8  back and forth, but we don't have a database on all

          9  of those organizations as yet.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Do you have an

         11  idea or an estimate of the number of individuals

         12  whose names are on your mailing list?

         13                 MS. VIDAL: Well, as I said,

         14  definitely 70 plus, for the Interagency Council --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: You are talking

         16  about 70 lists from various agencies?

         17                 MS. VIDAL: Pardon?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: You are talking

         19  about 70 lists from various agencies?

         20                 MS. VIDAL: That's right.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: I am asking the

         22  total number of persons or individuals on the list,

         23  do you have an idea?

         24                 MS. VIDAL: Yes. I do not have a total

         25  number at this time. If you would like that, I can
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          2  provide it to you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you. I

          4  would appreciate that.

          5                 Are there any other questions?

          6                 Council Member Clarke.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you,

          8  Madame Chair.

          9                 You have in a sense, you know, shown

         10  us the pieces of the quilt, if you will, can you

         11  just kind of guide us through then what -- how you

         12  are going to put all of that quilt together to make

         13  it a one big quilt in terms of all of the pieces

         14  together? The process by which you will. We are in a

         15  highly mobile city where you are going to do a

         16  mailing, but you may do mailings to people who have

         17  already moved, and what is the back-up to make sure

         18  that everybody gets counted in a highly mobile city

         19  as the one in which we live?

         20                 Also, I would like to be able to

         21  figure out from you how many languages the Census

         22  will take, recognizing all of the shifts in the City

         23  in terms of languages and people?

         24                 And then finally, how will you put it

         25  all together so that everybody feels that they are a
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          2  part of this effort in coming up with an accurate

          3  count?

          4                 MS. VIDAL: Okay, thank you for your

          5  question, and I believe that now it clarifies

          6  something that Council Member Pinkett was asking.

          7                 The mailing list you are speaking of

          8  is the mailing of the questionnaire, under no

          9  circumstances would it be 70. We will get to that.

         10                 But what I have done is asked the

         11  regional Census Director, Mr. Lester Farthing

         12  (phonetic) to join me, because he can respond to

         13  some of these questions that have been posed by

         14  Council Member Clarke and Councilperson Pinkett that

         15  relate directly to the operations of the Census

         16  Bureau, if you do not mind.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: No, I don't

         18  mind at all.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: We would welcome

         20  his presence, because we were trying to get some of

         21  that information, of course.

         22                 MS. VIDAL: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you.

         24                 MR. FARTHING: Council Member Clarke,

         25  I would ask if you could maybe ask me the questions
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          2  one by one because there were a whole lot of them

          3  and I probably have some responses for each one so

          4  that everybody can understand, and I can bring the

          5  whole piece together for you then.

          6                 One of the things that we are trying

          7  to do, and Sara had talked about the mailing list,

          8  that mailing list, of course we have worked with New

          9  York City Planning, and the Census Bureau has a

         10  mailing list that we had from 1990, we have also

         11  worked with the United States Post Office. Through

         12  changes in Title 13 of the US Code, that allowed us

         13  to finally share this mailing list with the post

         14  office and with New York City Planning. So that has

         15  been a great I think addition to what we think will

         16  be a much better mailing list so that we can mail

         17  our questionnaires out to the households.

         18                 We are not targeting or going after

         19  individuals, we are going after addresses in

         20  households, places where people live.

         21                 I want to add one thing that I think

         22  is very important, Sara knows very well, we have

         23  talked about it many times: We need your help badly,

         24  because what is going to happen, and Councilwoman

         25  Clarke, you mentioned this is a highly mobile City,
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          2  this is also a city where people live in what I

          3  would call unconditional types of housing.

          4                 In other words, you have housing

          5  where people are living doubled up. We have to

          6  address those families that way, letting them know

          7  that for everybody living in that apartment of house

          8  we want them to send back a questionnaire with all

          9  of the names on there.

         10                 We also have units that we may not

         11  ever find. For example, we are very concerned about

         12  neighborhoods like Richmond Hill, Queens, Ozone Park

         13  in Queens, Corona, Queens, where you have the old

         14  wooden frame homes and you have situations where you

         15  have maybe two mailboxes but you know there is a

         16  basement apartment and an attic apartment, and I

         17  have left out many other neighborhoods in New York

         18  City. There are a lot of them throughout Brooklyn,

         19  throughout the Bronx and it is even in Manhattan,

         20  believe it or not, what you would call these very

         21  traditional structured large apartment buildings. We

         22  are going to need your help, as well as the City's

         23  help and everybody's help, to get those individuals

         24  to come out and get a questionnaire. We probably

         25  will not get one mailed to them. There is no way we
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          2  are ever going to find out about that address and

          3  the post office will never mail one to them. The

          4  whole idea is for them to know, during that period

          5  before April 1st, where they can go to get counted,

          6  and we have to reach out to them.

          7                 Your trusted persons, or your trusted

          8  individuals in the community, they know you, I have

          9  already talked with Councilwoman Pinkett, the things

         10  that I think that she could do in the very district

         11  that she serves for me, and Councilwoman Clarke, I

         12  think we have had discussions on it as well, and you

         13  have with my staff as well, so it is very important

         14  that we have that level of presence where you are

         15  talking to the individuals who know, or we think

         16  they may not get a questionnaire.

         17                 One of the things Sara Vidal is going

         18  to work closely with us on is establishing what we

         19  call questionnaire assistance centers. What those

         20  sites are are sites that we would advertise,

         21  hopefully in your newsletters you would even do the

         22  same within your districts. These are areas that,

         23  are sites that we can advertise and locate within

         24  the community, where individuals can go who did not

         25  get a questionnaire. So on that very date when we
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          2  are out there advertising about the importance of

          3  getting a questionnaire mailed in, that individual

          4  who didn't get one knows where they can get one.

          5                 Also, those sites will serve as

          6  locations where individuals can get special

          7  services, in language services. We will have what

          8  you call questionnaire assistance guides where there

          9  will be individuals within that site that can help

         10  them within the languages that they speak. And

         11  working with Ms. Vidal and Ms. Shaw, they will help

         12  us determine what type of languages, or what type of

         13  language assistance we need in those sites.

         14                 We like to keep those sites open at

         15  least a month, at least 15 days before April 1st and

         16  a minimum of 15 days afterwards. In New York City I

         17  think we need to go even longer, probably until the

         18  end of April.

         19                 Now, what is going to happen around

         20  the middle of April of 2000 is that the Census

         21  Bureau kind of stops. We are going to have massive

         22  campaigns going out, with your help and with some of

         23  your efforts, getting individuals to return that

         24  questionnaire.

         25                 What will happen after April 15th, as
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          2  we stop, we take a look, we say, okay, which

          3  households did not return a questionnaire? At that

          4  point in time, and you will certainly help us with

          5  recruiting efforts, I hope, we then have to get

          6  together this massive army. Sara referred earlier to

          7  this being the largest peace time operation that the

          8  government conducts, which it is, because we will

          9  have to get a massive army of individuals to go out

         10  to then knock on the doors of those households that

         11  did not return a questionnaire.

         12                 Keep in mind, the households that we

         13  will knock on will be those households that are from

         14  or listed on our census address list. So, i am

         15  trying to, I want to make sure I am clear to

         16  everybody that we really have two jobs here. We have

         17  to get those households that get a questionnaire to

         18  return that questionnaire back, otherwise we are

         19  going to go and knock on their door. But there is a

         20  very hidden component in New York City and that is

         21  those individuals who live in what I call the

         22  unstructured, unconditional types of housing, where

         23  there is no mailbox, where they live in the attic or

         24  apartment, and we are never going to find out from

         25  them that there is that particular unit there. We
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          2  have to get them to come out and feel they have to

          3  get counted.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay. My final

          5  question is going to be around the issue of, I know

          6  I was talking to a church group about the importance

          7  of doing the census, and this one woman was here

          8  maybe in the middle of the last census and she saw

          9  that because she filled in the 1990 census she had

         10  lived here eight years before, she filled in the

         11  1990 census, and her taxes were audited in 1991 and

         12  I cannot change her mind that she was not audited

         13  because she filled that form. I know we kind of put

         14  in a piece of legislation here to indemnify and to

         15  help people to understand that the census does not

         16  have relationship to any other governmental,

         17  anything that they may be associated with; is there

         18  anything that we can do to allay people's fear about

         19  filling the census? You know, so that they know the

         20  sole purpose of the census?

         21                 MR. FARTHING: That Councilpersons,

         22  and audience, that is going to be our biggest

         23  challenge facing us in New York City. For all the

         24  efforts that we do, if we don't combat that fear,

         25  then they are really not going to succeed.
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          2                 What I would tell you, first of all,

          3  and it is the same thing that I have been saying for

          4  a long time, that since this is confidential for 72

          5  years, so any information that you give to census

          6  workers, to the Census Bureau, it is held in the

          7  strictest of confidence for 72 years. If anyone

          8  releases any census information, names, addresses,

          9  anything like that, they are liable to prison, a

         10  prison term up to five years and prison, as well as

         11  a $5,000 fine, it depends on the severity of the

         12  offense.

         13                 What I will also tell individuals,

         14  they have to keep in mind we have been doing the

         15  census since 1790, and you are not going to find any

         16  individuals that will come back and say the Census

         17  Bureau gave out my name and address to any

         18  government agency.

         19                 The Census Bureau, and in handouts, I

         20  hope that we get to have a meeting with the Council

         21  so we can give you a presentation on the Census, we

         22  have handouts that even discuss the many challenges

         23  that the Census Bureau has faced, from even as high

         24  as the Executive Office to get census data, names

         25  and addresses, and we fought off those challenges
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          2  each time.

          3                 One of the big issues right now that

          4  is on the table is the issue of the INS. There are

          5  some people in the audience, I know Glen is here

          6  today representing the Asian-American Legal Defense

          7  Fund, and Glen has also found and said there are

          8  some loopholes right now, interpretations in terms

          9  of how the Census Bureau protects data, but then

         10  there are other laws that may in fact say, well,

         11  maybe INS could have access to that.

         12                 What you are going to find, as I know

         13  of as I speak today, is that issue raised by Glen

         14  and the other Legal Defense Fund agencies, has gone

         15  as high up right now to the Executive Office.

         16                 As I read in the paper late last

         17  week, Janet Reno was looking at this right now, as

         18  well as the President's office, President Clinton.

         19  I am expecting to see something coming out very

         20  shortly where that loophole is going to be closed.

         21                 I think once we do that then we can

         22  go ahead with business to really ensure and we will

         23  have stuff in writing so we can assure to the public

         24  that they have nothing to worry about.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you,
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          2  Madame Chair.

          3                 Thank you very much, Sir.

          4                 MR. FARTHING: You are quite welcome.

          5  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: I think the

          7  other concern that I would feel that we need to

          8  stress would be that there are many individuals,

          9  just to speak in one sense, though, before we leave

         10  that, it is not only the resident who would be

         11  fearful of coming out and living under the

         12  circumstance that you are speaking of, it would be

         13  also the landlord or the owner who is doing two

         14  things, they are violating a City code in terms of

         15  housing people in an illegal manner, because using a

         16  basement apartment for one thing; and two, the other

         17  thing would be the fact that I am sure in terms of

         18  income that is not reflected, it is off the books,

         19  so there would be two groups of people who would be

         20  desirous of not revealing that information, so we

         21  would have to have some assurance that we can

         22  provide that kind of anonymity for both the owner of

         23  the property and also for the individuals who reside

         24  in those kinds of residences in order to provide the

         25  protection.
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          2                 The other concern would be for those

          3  people who have lived here for a number of years,

          4  and no one knows who is a resident legally or not

          5  legally. And the concern would be, if I filled this

          6  out, will my status then be revealed? What will

          7  happen to me? Will I be deported, et cetera. And

          8  that would be a great concern, and I think that

          9  there has to be assurances that this kind of census

         10  is not for the purpose or will not in any way be

         11  used against that individual. This will not lead to

         12  their deportation, there will be no investigation,

         13  there will be no inquiry as to their status and if

         14  by some reason their status became known even

         15  accidentally, it would not be a part of this census

         16  and should not be used detrimentally for any harmful

         17  purpose for the individual. I think the cooperation

         18  there is very important, and I think the benefits to

         19  be gained for the City, for their children, for

         20  education, ought to be stressed because I believe

         21  that is one of the reasons that the people stay in a

         22  society, for benefits that will help them and help

         23  their families, and I think that they must know that

         24  there is indeed a benefit and that has to be

         25  stressed.
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          2                 MR. FARTHING: Councilperson, if I

          3  may, I would like to first stress the issue of

          4  anonymity.

          5                 Many people do not understand, they

          6  have not really seen the census data as it is

          7  produced. When the Census Bureau releases data,

          8  which is really, it is not names or addresses, that

          9  is the stuff that stays in our vault for 72 years,

         10  we take the statistics so-to-speak. So, when you

         11  have an individual, and I can tell you when the data

         12  comes out it comes out at block level, so you are

         13  not even going to see any specific addresses at any

         14  point in time. You are going to see housing unit

         15  counts and population and that's it. That is what we

         16  give out in terms of numbers. Many people don't

         17  understand that, so even the landlord as you spoke,

         18  or the homeowner, for instance, that may be in

         19  violation or something, they is still no way that

         20  information is going to be used. Whenever the Census

         21  Bureau realizes it can be traced down to an

         22  individual household or something like that, then

         23  what we do is we suppress the data. So what you will

         24  see sometimes within two blocks, you will see block

         25  number one, and block number 102 and it has the data
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          2  combined together, and that is so you don't -- we

          3  can keep that anonymity among the people.

          4                 The second thing, in terms of the

          5  legal and non-legal residents, I want to address

          6  that because, again, that is a big concern here, and

          7  it is one of our big challenges, and I guess the

          8  term would be documented and undocumented persons.

          9                 Probably this census more than any

         10  other will we be making a big push to stress that we

         11  want to count citizens as well as non-citizens. And

         12  we want to count you no matter what your status. And

         13  there are many reasons behind that. You alluded to a

         14  lot of them, Councilperson. Those individuals that

         15  are here, whatever their status may be, they send

         16  their children to our schools, they use our public

         17  transportation and they use the roads, they go to

         18  the health service providers. If they are here now,

         19  the likelihood is that they are going to be here

         20  later.

         21                 In the Year 2000, that is the

         22  opportunity to get people counted, to get the amount

         23  of federal funding that this City is entitled to. We

         24  have to get them into the picture. They need to be

         25  represented so that that federal funding comes and
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          2  is representative of them as well. And one of the

          3  ways that we are looking at doing this is we have to

          4  meet them on their level. It is not something that

          5  just comes from a high level, but we have to get

          6  individuals out there talking, Glen, from the

          7  Asian-American Legal Defense Fund, individuals like

          8  that who work very closely with those populations,

          9  to get the message out, all of the things I talked

         10  about earlier, about the fact that we have no

         11  association with INS, that their information will be

         12  protected, they have nothing to fear. That will be

         13  coming out even in our advertisements, educational

         14  components. I will tell you, more than anything else

         15  we have to go out and talk to them and we have to do

         16  it a lot, we have to do it often. My staff is

         17  prepared to go out to do that, that is what we do a

         18  lot of already. We go out to the churches, we have

         19  to go the football or soccer fields to reach the

         20  Mexican-American population, we will do that.

         21                 We have to go out to these

         22  communities, talk to the leaders of the communities,

         23  find out how do you best think we can reach the

         24  individuals there, but also we want to empower them

         25  to talk about the census, because coming from their
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          2  mouth instead of my mouth is probably going to be a

          3  lot more convincing. And we are going to welcome

          4  your assistance, your ideas, your support, as well

          5  as Councilpersons, because we think you can really

          6  make a tremendous difference in this whole process

          7  for the City.

          8                 MS. VIDAL: May I add to the

          9  responses, that the office, our office of New York

         10  City Census 2000, has worked very closely with the

         11  Department of City Planning to try to identify

         12  addresses that must be added to that master list

         13  that you are talking about before, I don't know the

         14  number but I know that thousands, I have seen

         15  thousands of new addresses added to the master list

         16  that the Census Bureau has received.

         17                 Not only that, recently, Mr. Farthing

         18  can vouch for the fact that we gave them a list as

         19  the city two and a half inches thick of places where

         20  people go for food or the homeless may congregate or

         21  young people walk the streets at night, where every

         22  you can find someone that is not in a conventional

         23  place we have listed that so that the Census Bureau

         24  will know, go to Avenue C and blank, blank corner,

         25  you will find some young people that come there, go
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          2  to this food pantry where there are some people that

          3  life underneath a bridge and they go there to eat.

          4  They have all of those locations so that with their

          5  effort to identify places, they can send someone

          6  there and make sure that census forms are completed.

          7  We are committed to working with them, to look at

          8  all of those sites that we have designated, and all

          9  of those new addresses that I know that they are

         10  adding to the list, especially those in what we call

         11  low- and middle-density areas where you have a

         12  one-family or a two-family house and actually you

         13  have four, or maybe six or eight families living

         14  there. Well, we have gone out, the City has gone out

         15  with the Census Bureau, door to door, mailbox by

         16  mailbox, checking the Con Edison bills, the

         17  telephone bills, Brooklyn Union Gas, merging all of

         18  this information to get a better address list.

         19                 We have also outreached to the United

         20  Jewish Appeal to the Metropolitan Council on Jewish

         21  Poverty, there is a Latino Umbrella Group, there is

         22  the Asian-American Task Force where parents attend

         23  every month and other task forces that have been

         24  created, a lot of CBOs that are working with us and

         25  a lot of civic organizations that don't come out to
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          2  anything else, in order for them as trusted agents

          3  to reach out to those individuals that don't show up

          4  any place else.

          5                 There is also a program that the

          6  Census Bureau has, which is called Census in the

          7  Schools, and in January the Census Bureau had

          8  planned to provide this curriculum material to

          9  designated schools, and working together with our

         10  regional office, we screamed hard enough and we were

         11  able to get every single school in New York City to

         12  get involved in the census in the school's program.

         13  Why? Because every child can go back home and remind

         14  mom and dad just before census day you have to fill

         15  out this form.

         16                 And we have to also remember that a

         17  huge amount of the undercount were children. So, we

         18  are trying to get the child to make sure the parent

         19  fills it out, and that they are included as well.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you.

         21                 Council Member Lloyd Henry.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: Yes. Thank you,

         23  Madame Chair.

         24                 Both speakers, Madame Chair, alluded

         25  to the fact of the importance of the involvement of
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          2  the churches, community-based organizations,

          3  religious leaders and also the members of the City

          4  Council. My question to you is, why did not the

          5  Administration reach out to the Council in the first

          6  place in putting this interagency council together,

          7  seeing that we play, or should be playing such an

          8  important role, and we enjoy to a large extent the

          9  confidence of our constituents?

         10                 MS. VIDAL: I don't think I am the

         11  person to respond to that, unfortunately.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: My other

         13  question is, to what extent, given our Intro 457, to

         14  what extent are the offices of the Comptroller and

         15  Public Advocate represented on the Council?

         16                 MS. VIDAL: You mean on the task force

         17  that we have right now?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: Yes.

         19                 MS. VIDAL: It is not exclusive, it is

         20  inclusive. Anyone can come and participate. I know

         21  that I was invited to the Comptroller's recent

         22  discussions on the Census. I know that the Advocate,

         23  the Public Advocate, has also been concerned, and in

         24  his newsletter he has mentioned census materials

         25  because I get it at home. So, it is not that they
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          2  are not involved, they are involved. I think that

          3  what we are speaking of today and as we continue to

          4  speak is about bringing them all together so that

          5  the effort is even more united and we can have even

          6  better results.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: And further, do

          8  you have any statutory obligation in place to report

          9  all of your efforts and findings and process to the

         10  City Council?

         11                 MS. VIDAL: We report, our office

         12  reports on a weekly basis to Deputy Mayor Rudy

         13  Washington, and that is the report that we provide

         14  every single week so there is a record of all of our

         15  activities at this time.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: To what extent

         17  would members of the Council be privy to that

         18  report?

         19                 MS. VIDAL: I am not the person to

         20  respond to that either, I am sorry.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: All right.

         22                 Given the piece of legislation which

         23  we are introducing, do you see your work conflicting

         24  in any way with the provisions of Intro. 457?

         25                 MS. VIDAL: I think we had a wonderful
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          2  conversation yesterday where our office spoke with

          3  Councilperson Henry's office word for word on Intro.

          4  457, and I believe I expressed at that time, which

          5  you very eloquently stated this morning, that there

          6  are so many projects that are currently being done

          7  by our office in conjunction with the boroughs

          8  through the complete count committees in each

          9  borough headed by the Borough Presidents, that in

         10  fact your Intro. 457 was for, in other words, not as

         11  maybe redundant or not as comprehensive as the work

         12  that we are already doing. So, I remember that from

         13  the City's perspective there was nothing new to be

         14  added there because we are doing everything that you

         15  already are introducing in Intro. 457.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: Though my

         17  contention with that is that the Mayor established

         18  this agency by executive order. There is nothing

         19  that we have that is mandated by the Council into

         20  law.

         21                 MS. VIDAL: I am not aware of an

         22  executive order establishing this office. This was

         23  an appointment to this office. My appointment and

         24  Karen Shaw's appointment.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: My final
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          2  question is, the area of confidentiality, that is in

          3  the uppermost of our minds.

          4                 Granted that you will be involving

          5  the expertist of churches, religious leaders,

          6  community organizations, and members of the City

          7  Council, to what extent would individuals in those

          8  communities be used as census takers? What

          9  involvement will they be having, and what dollar

         10  figure are you putting in that respect?

         11                 MR. FARTHING: As far as census

         12  takers, those are the individuals that will go and

         13  knock on the doors in very late April, early May, of

         14  the households that did not return a questionnaire,

         15  that is all going to be fueled by the job that we do

         16  right around April 1st.

         17                 Keep in mind that in a lot of the

         18  efforts that we have to do, which I like to bring to

         19  the floor that everyone needs to realize that we can

         20  do all of the talk and advertising and promotion

         21  that we want to do, but whatever we do, it has to

         22  motivate individuals to do one of two things: To

         23  mail back the questionnaire, fill it out and mail

         24  back the questionnaire, deliver it to their home, or

         25  if they didn't receive one at their home, go to a
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          2  site that is advertised, pick one up, fill it out

          3  and send it in. That is what is going to get you the

          4  good count ultimately for New York City. Hopefully

          5  the advertising and all of our efforts combined will

          6  entice people to do those things.

          7                 When we hire our enumerators to knock

          8  on the doors, that is all going to be based on the

          9  mail return rates in each of the areas.

         10                 We have divided the City up into 22

         11  local census offices, and we will be hiring staff

         12  based on those particular areas.

         13                 Just to give you an example, there

         14  would be an office for Crown Heights, covering Crown

         15  Heights and Flatbush. There is an office covering

         16  Northwest Brooklyn and we divided it up, usually

         17  most of the areas, most of the boroughs have at

         18  least at a minimum four offices covering each

         19  borough, in some cases it is up to five or more.

         20                 In each of those office areas we look

         21  at the mail return rate and then we make a decision

         22  based on how many households did not return a

         23  questionnaire, then that determines the number of

         24  people that we have to hire to go out and knock on

         25  doors.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            48

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2                 Now, to further answer your question,

          3  Councilman, by all means, my being the director I am

          4  going to ensure that this happens because I am going

          5  to be responsive.  If I see it is not happening, and

          6  believe me, it is going to happen, we are hiring

          7  people from the neighborhood where they live to work

          8  in that neighborhood. That ensures that I have

          9  individuals working in the neighborhood, who

         10  understand the neighborhood best, all of the

         11  sensitivities of it. If there are language

         12  requirements involved, well, we are hiring right in

         13  that neighborhood and we have addressed that issue

         14  right then and there.

         15                 So, that is how we are going to

         16  really tackle that issue, and I am going to be

         17  monitoring that very closely.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: Thank you.

         19                 Madame Chair, I will hold the rest of

         20  my questions, given the fact that we have other

         21  testimonies.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you.

         23                 Before we continue, we had been

         24  joined prior to this by Council Member Juanita

         25  Watkins, from Queens.
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          2                 Council Member Watkins, you have some

          3  questions, I believe?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Thank you,

          5  Madame Chair.

          6                 The first thing, when you talked

          7  about the sites where you will be placing forms for

          8  those people who did not receive them, I would

          9  certainly recommend that community boards and City

         10  Council local offices, district offices, would be

         11  prime sites because people are used to coming to our

         12  offices, other local legislative offices also are

         13  places where people come to receive forms and

         14  information.

         15                 Ms. Vidal, you said that you felt

         16  that there was probably some redundancy to Intro.

         17  457 and I am sorry that because of a prior

         18  appointment I wasn't here early enough to hear the

         19  composition of the task force that the Mayor

         20  appointed. Could you just quickly tell me how many

         21  and how it is composed?

         22                 MS. VIDAL: Okay.

         23                 Back in 1996 when the partnership

         24  with the City and the federal government was

         25  established, the first thing that occurs is that the
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          2  Census Bureau is required to contact the highest

          3  elected official in a municipality, which is why

          4  they come then to the Mayor, to establish the

          5  partnership.

          6                 In 1996, the Department of City

          7  Planning was in the forefront of activities with

          8  regards to the census and for some time, between

          9  1996 and '98, dealt with the issues of census, as

         10  well as other staff within the Deputy Mayor's

         11  Office, to whom I report, Deputy Mayor Washington.

         12                 At that time, between '96 and '98,

         13  the Department of City Planning made an analysis and

         14  two areas were distinguished for the census effort,

         15  one was outreach and the other one was technical.

         16  Everything technical is being handled by the

         17  Department of City Planning, so that when we talked

         18  about getting the address list, and making sure that

         19  we put as many names as possible, all of that comes

         20  through City Planning.

         21                 As far as outreach, all of those

         22  areas where an undercount has been distinguished, or

         23  an undercount or not, where we know we have to work

         24  to bring out the numbers, that task is specifically

         25  our office, New York City Census 2000, and in order
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          2  to get our work done, we do not separate therefore

          3  City Planning and Census 2000 offices, we join

          4  together every week. We have regular meetings to

          5  discuss the census operation in New York City.

          6                 Our task force, the interagency task

          7  force, is only one of several structures that we

          8  have identified as vehicles to outreach to

          9  communities. The Interagency Task Force is made up

         10  of a policy-making person from each City agency.

         11  Currently 70 City agencies participate, and on a

         12  monthly basis we meet with them.

         13                 We have been educating them since

         14  December, giving them technical work so that they

         15  become ambassadors of census, they can go into each

         16  one of their agencies and tell people and get

         17  volunteers and get ambassadors on census. Not only

         18  that, but we have identified the resources of each

         19  one of these agencies through a form --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: I don't want

         21  to just interrupt you, but based on what I am

         22  hearing, that indicates that there is not

         23  necessarily someone from Tottenville area of Staten

         24  Island who may be involved, unless they happen to be

         25  on the interagency something or the other.
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          2                 MS. VIDAL: May I continue to explain

          3  to you what --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Well, you

          5  have given me more information than I requested.

          6                 MS. VIDAL: Okay.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: I just want

          8  to know, for this task force, how many are we

          9  talking about and where they come from. You told me

         10  70, right? And that they come from the City

         11  agencies, all right? So we are talking about

         12  agencies such as, I would assume DOT, we are talking

         13  about the Mayor's Emergency --

         14                 MS. VIDAL: HRA, everybody, OTB. But

         15  that is not the only segment of the organization. I

         16  think you want to hear the other part, which is, you

         17  have every borough represented because the Census

         18  Bureau has established with each Borough President a

         19  complete count committee. The complete count

         20  committee reaches out to every elected official in

         21  each borough, to all leaders in that borough, the

         22  community boards in that borough, and we attend

         23  those meetings on a monthly basis, so that through

         24  the Borough President complete count committees, we

         25  are also involved with every single community. But
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          2  that is not all, we have religious --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Well, this

          4  person is hearing about the complete count committee

          5  for the first time, so obviously there is a

          6  breakdown in communication.

          7                 Let me address our bill. I would say

          8  that despite everything that you have done and are

          9  doing, and all of it is good and all of it is

         10  necessary, but most of us have had experience with

         11  City Planning, and with our individual Borough

         12  Presidents, and I can tell you I feel comfortable

         13  speaking for Council Member Pinkett, Council Members

         14  Henry and Clarke, that I dare say nobody knows, in

         15  the Borough President's Office, or in City Planning,

         16  some of the nooks and crannies and niches and

         17  secrets in Council Member Pinkett's district that

         18  she knows about, and she probably undoubtedly knows

         19  her district even better than I know mine because

         20  she has been there longer. So that that is number

         21  one.

         22                 Number two is that the only

         23  accountability for the group that you tell me about

         24  is to the Mayor of the City of New York, and we do

         25  understand that he is the highest elected official.
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          2  But on the other hand, I bet nobody called his

          3  office or his home at 3:00 on Sunday afternoon as a

          4  constituent did call mine about a local condition,

          5  and I dare say that even though we are neighbors,

          6  and Deputy Mayor Rudy Washington has been extremely

          7  responsive, it was my office and not his that got

          8  the call yesterday about 1.7 inches of rainfall and

          9  flooded an area of Springfield Gardens.

         10                 So, I feel that our bill speaks to,

         11  number one, we are closer to, as are the community

         12  boards, but we are closer to our individual

         13  communities, we know them better, and as far as

         14  accountability is concerned, it doesn't matter how

         15  many task forces, unless somebody that is elected

         16  here has some oversight the buck stops at our office

         17  doors. People come in to us and expect us to

         18  advocate for those services for schools, to advocate

         19  for the transportation, to complain about the need

         20  for increased sanitation pick-ups, and if we are not

         21  involved, it is grossly unrealistic, not to say

         22  unfair, for us to have to shoulder the

         23  responsibility to be accountable for those services

         24  and for our budgetary responsibilities like right

         25  now, to replace cuts in sanitation pick-ups for
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          2  litter baskets, that comes to us, not any of those

          3  other agencies. So, this is not a redundancy, from

          4  what I hear, it becomes even more necessary for us

          5  to have some kind of an agency, and as the part that

          6  the Mayor appoints, if he wants to appoint his key

          7  people who are already in place, that would speed

          8  things up. But I feel that we have not only a right,

          9  we have an obligation to participate.

         10                 MS. VIDAL: I agree that there is no

         11  one closer to the grassroots effort than the Council

         12  members. I am a little shocked to hear, though, that

         13  the Borough President complete count committees have

         14  not included your active participation and it is

         15  something I would look into.

         16                 MR. FARTHING: If I may add one other

         17  thing, and this is speaking, I am putting my federal

         18  hat on here, as a representative of the US Census

         19  Bureau.

         20                 The efforts of the Mayor's Office

         21  clearly are the efforts that they have, and I know

         22  that they realize the importance that you bring to

         23  this whole picture of what we need to do for an

         24  entire, I would say collective effort, because we

         25  have to get many, many people involved in this. You
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          2  bring a lot to this. I understand that what we are

          3  going to do is we are going to do our part in

          4  support and in conjunction with the Mayor's Office,

          5  to make sure that you are involved in this process.

          6  I know Councilperson Pinkett knows who I am,

          7  Councilwoman Clarke and Councilman Henry, so we want

          8  to hear from you when you are not feeling involved

          9  enough, but I hope as of today we will strike a good

         10  rapport --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Just leave

         12  your card however, the Borough Presidents and the

         13  Mayor and all of those other people I stay in touch

         14  and he stays in touch with.  The person who votes

         15  the money, from our point of view, and that is my

         16  local Congressman and our US Senator, as far as

         17  these are concerned, because I have learned over the

         18  years that you have to follow the money. He who

         19  controls the budget has some say.

         20                 So, leave some information and I will

         21  be glad to follow up.

         22                 MR. FARTHING: We will.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: I would hope

         24  that this discussion would continue in this fashion.

         25  Each of us comes to the table bringing a point of
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          2  view and a perspective. I regard the budget as very,

          3  very important, because whether anyone will admit

          4  it, the budget is the real political arm of

          5  government. It is what makes the grist mill run.

          6                 The census is very, very important

          7  for a number of reasons. It determines who gets

          8  what, when and where.

          9                 In addition to that, it also

         10  determines political representation, and he who

         11  loses on that term has lost everything.

         12                 He or she who gains, gains

         13  everything.

         14                 So, it is not to be left, I believe,

         15  to any one person. Everyone must be involved and we

         16  especially must be involved in that.

         17                 We take a special pride and interest

         18  in this because we are not here just as supplicants,

         19  we are legislators, and we are the City's

         20  legislative body. In a sense the Mayor, of course,

         21  is the chief legislator for the City of New York, he

         22  is the Mayor of the City of New York and we give him

         23  the respect that the office entails.

         24                 But when the budget comes across the

         25  table, the Mayor and the Council must deal on that
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          2  budget. When it comes to talking about who shall

          3  indeed divide the dollars of the City of New York,

          4  and how they shall determine who will get what from

          5  the federal government, it will be as a result of

          6  the census, which we cooperatively hope will redown

          7  to the benefit of the people of the City of New

          8  York, because it will be judged fairly and it will

          9  give to the people of the City of New York a voice

         10  that is very clear, very open, quite loud. We don't

         11  plan to take anyone's voice away. We just expect

         12  that all of us will be heard. What we hope will come

         13  from this beginning dialogue is that the questions

         14  that we have raised will continue in future dialogue

         15  between you, the Mayor's Task Force, certainly we

         16  know that we will have conversation with and we will

         17  have direction from the census, and we want that we

         18  need that and we look forward to that and we

         19  appreciate your presence.

         20                 This Committee seeks to work with you

         21  because it is in our interest to do so, it is in our

         22  interest to do so, and so we are going to be here

         23  and we are going to work with you, and we are going

         24  to work with the Mayor and there is going to be some

         25  give and some take on every side.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            59

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2                 We thank you for your testimony.

          3                 MS. VIDAL: Thank you for inviting us.

          4  It has been an honor for us to be here.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: You will be

          6  invited again, and we look forward to the responses

          7  that you committed to give to us, we look forward to

          8  receiving those.

          9                 MS. VIDAL: As soon as possible.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: If there are

         11  further questions that we think of that we would

         12  like to ask you, we will submit them to you in

         13  writing so that you will have them, and hopefully

         14  you will respond to us.

         15                 MS. VIDAL: Fantastic. And we will

         16  leave our cards also so you can call us.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Okay, thank you.

         19                 Dr. Luther Blake.

         20                 And the Mayor of course will tell me

         21  he is not the Chief Legislator, but he keeps trying

         22  to be, so sometimes I let him think he is, but I

         23  know he is the Mayor. We pass a bill, then he goes

         24  to court to try and be the legislator.

         25                 DR. BLAKE: Are we ready, Madame

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            60

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  Chairwoman?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: We are ready

          4  indeed, sir.

          5                 Thank you, first of all, for your

          6  presence, and for your patience. We appreciate your

          7  presence, of course.

          8                 DR. BLAKE: Good afternoon. My name is

          9  Dr. Luther Blake. I am President of Blake Associates

         10  a research and consultant firm, for many past years

         11  I have been involved in research using the census as

         12  a database. I have been a consultant on districting

         13  matters for the New York Assembly, NAACP Legal

         14  Defense Fund, NAACP State of North Carolina and I

         15  was a member of the New York City Districting

         16  Commission.

         17                 One of the things that we must

         18  address is that the census is a political document.

         19  All of the good things that we talk about are really

         20  nice, but the politics of the census is the politics

         21  of where the money goes, it is the politics of who

         22  gets elected and where. There are three numbers in

         23  the census, there is an official count, there is

         24  estimated count, and there is a choice where the

         25  census can be estimated. If you look at the document
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          2  at the back of the documents, you will see an

          3  official count and you will see an adjusted count.

          4                 Ten years ago we were not allowed in

          5  the City of New York to use the adjusted count. The

          6  difference between the two figures are 300,000

          7  people. This was an adjustment on a bad census.

          8                 So, when we start to look at the

          9  amount of people involved, we are talking about

         10  millions of dollars. If we are talking about

         11  approximately $1,500, $1,600 per person times

         12  300,000, you can do the math. I am in favor of the

         13  legislation before you. It is a good start but it

         14  does not go far enough. You are asking the

         15  Commission to answer questions that we already know

         16  the answers to. We know the areas of the City that

         17  are undercounted, we know who is undercounted.

         18                 The Census Bureau is supposed to send

         19  enumerators to homes of persons who do not return

         20  the census forms. But what has happened in the past?

         21  In the past we have seen the census enumerators

         22  going through Chinatown and certain people can't

         23  speak Chinese. It is absolutely absurd.

         24                 We know that the largest undercount

         25  took place in the Serrano district in the Bronx, the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            62

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  Rangel district in Manhattan, the Owens district in

          3  Brooklyn, and the Times article did not even talk

          4  about the Velasquez district in Brooklyn which takes

          5  in Chinatown and a large Latino area of Northern

          6  Brooklyn.

          7                 Are we going to sit back and have the

          8  same thing happen that has happened to us in the

          9  past? The question is, I really believe that it is

         10  excellent legislation, but it does not go far

         11  enough. You have to involve, not only the Council,

         12  but our Congress people, because in reality they are

         13  on the lines.

         14                 New York State is going to lose two

         15  congressional seats. Normally one would be upstate

         16  and one would be downstate. Your districts are going

         17  to be redrawn two years from now based on the

         18  census. Now, there will still be 51 seats in the

         19  Council, but the problem is how big or how small

         20  those districts are.

         21                 We have to have a way of going,

         22  getting to those people and all of the things that

         23  have been spoken about earlier. Knocking on people's

         24  doors, getting people from the neighborhoods to

         25  knock on people's doors, because if you are not
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          2  counted, you don't count.

          3                 We are always talking about, you

          4  know, if they had the commuter tax. They talk about

          5  $3 million, which is really a drop in the bucket. If

          6  you are talking about the amount of money that we

          7  haven't even asked for, 300,000 times $1,750, you do

          8  the math. If we do not go out there and make

          9  demands, not only on the Census Bureau, because what

         10  I hear sounds good, but I have heard it before. All

         11  of these good things are going to happen, but you

         12  know, I don't believe that they would.

         13                 If you see that right now in

         14  Washington, the Supreme Court has recently ruled

         15  that for the purpose of reapportionment, the actual

         16  census count has to be done. Reapportionment, in

         17  terms of how many seats are allocated where, but for

         18  the purpose of redistricting and for accounting the

         19  money, the estimates can be used. If we could use

         20  the estimates, within the estimates you have a 94

         21  percent probability ratio of being correct. The

         22  estimate gives you a higher probability than the

         23  actual count. Or if the adjusted count, which is

         24  based on the actual count.

         25                 And it may sound complicated because
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          2  it is involving mathematical formulas, what I am

          3  saying is that the City's Office of Census sounds

          4  nice, but I also have the Republican party in

          5  Washington saying they don't want you to do this.

          6  They know that if you took an accurate count in all

          7  of these cities, what you would have is a higher

          8  democratic enrollment, because most under-counted

          9  people in New York City are black males. All of the

         10  numbers show that.

         11                 You know, so I am not saying anything

         12  that is out of order. Look at the districts that are

         13  under counted, it doesn't take a rocket scientist to

         14  know who lives there, and all of these people were

         15  registered to vote, 99 percent of them were probably

         16  for democratic.

         17                 So when I talk about we must be aware

         18  that this is a political process. As the

         19  Councilwoman said, the budget is a political

         20  process. All of this is politics, and I am very

         21  happy that the Council has come forward and the

         22  Council has taken a proactive stand.

         23                 I feel presently very happy because

         24  when we put this Council together in 1992, 51 seats,

         25  it was one of the things that we wanted to see
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          2  happen.

          3                 I am not going to talk much longer. I

          4  would be happy to answer any questions that you may

          5  have.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: I, quite

          7  frankly, don't have any, because I think I know your

          8  stance and I agree.

          9                 Does anyone else have questions?

         10                 DR. BLAKE: Okay, thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Okay, we thank

         12  you for your testimony. And you will be hearing from

         13  us as we take future testimony.

         14                 Yasmine Hurston. Would you please

         15  identify yourself by name and title. Thank you for

         16  being so patient.

         17                 MS. HURSTON: Good afternoon,

         18  everyone. My name is Yasmine Hurston, and it is with

         19  great pleasure that I sit before you to present our

         20  testimony on behalf of the Manhattan Borough

         21  President C. Virginia Fields on basically

         22  establishment and the comprisement of the temporary

         23  task force on Census 2000.

         24                 In October the Manhattan Borough

         25  President, C. Virginia Fields, testified before the
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          2  City Council's Subcommittee on Immigration to call

          3  attention to the importance of a fairly administered

          4  national census in the Year 2000.

          5                 The census provides the basis for

          6  many of the most important decisions in our federal

          7  system of government from the apportionment of seats

          8  in the US House of Representatives, to the

          9  appropriation of federal funds for housing, health

         10  care, transportation and other vital services.

         11                 There is little doubt that the last

         12  census in 1990 was to a large extent flawed, flawed

         13  because of the undercount of hundreds of thousands

         14  of residents in New York and other major cities.

         15                 For nearly ten years that undercount

         16  has penalized New Yorkers and other urban Americans

         17  by denying us fair legislative representation and

         18  equitable federal funding.

         19                 The Borough President is glad that

         20  the City Council and other City elected officials

         21  have taken steps to make sure that the census in

         22  2000 is conducted fairly, so that New Yorkers are

         23  not shortchanged again.

         24                 The proposed temporary Task Force on

         25  the Census 2000 is an excellent beginning. It is
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          2  noted that the task force members will consist of

          3  five members appointed by the Speaker of the

          4  Council, and six, including the chair of the task

          5  force, appointed by the Mayor. The Comptroller and

          6  Public Advocate shall also designate one

          7  representative to serve on such task force.

          8                 Since each Borough President plays

          9  such a significant role in the Census by promoting

         10  awareness, the Borough President asked me that you

         11  consider each Borough President designating one

         12  representative to the Temporary Task Force on the

         13  Census.

         14                 Over the past year, the Borough

         15  President has been working with the Census Bureau to

         16  establish awareness activities throughout the

         17  Borough of Manhattan, and also to locate sites of

         18  local offices to provide a presence in previously

         19  under counted communities, and we are now in the

         20  process of establishing a complete count committee.

         21                 The goal of this committee, the

         22  complete count, that is, is to make everyone in the

         23  community aware of Census 2000 and motivate

         24  communities to participate by filling out the census

         25  form and returning it immediately.
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          2                 The objectives of the complete count

          3  committee include developing a local targeted plan

          4  of action to support Census 2000 operations,

          5  recruiting and promotion, using highly visible and

          6  well respected local figures to increase community

          7  support for and response to the Census, implementing

          8  activities that will improve census participation by

          9  all residents, especially historically undercounted

         10  segments of the population, emphasizing the Census

         11  Bureau's commitment to confidentiality, to further

         12  increase participation in the Census, and augmenting

         13  media programs, publicity and promotions conducted

         14  by the Census Bureau.

         15                 Because the complete count committee

         16  embodies the importance of collaboration between

         17  state, local and neighborhood organizations, the

         18  communities and the Census Bureau, and since the

         19  Manhattan complete count committee is best prepared

         20  to coordinate a boroughwide effort, the Borough

         21  President urges you again, the City Council, to name

         22  the chair of the Manhattan complete count committee

         23  to the Task Force.

         24                 Thank you very much for letting me

         25  speak to you, and I am open for any questions.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: I would thank

          3  you for being so very explicit and making it

          4  possible for us to ask you any questions.

          5                 Would you kindly thank the Borough

          6  President for her appearance through you, and we

          7  appreciate your testimony.

          8                 Thank you very, very much.

          9                 MS. HURSTON: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Victor Manuel

         11  Montesinos.

         12                 Identify yourself by name, title and

         13  organization.

         14                 MR. MONTESINOS: My name is Victor

         15  Manuel Montesinos. I am here representing

         16  Congresswoman Carolyn Maloney, 14th Congressional

         17  District, Manhattan, Queens.

         18                 The Congresswoman asked me to read

         19  this testimony on her behalf, all right?

         20                 I am sorry that I cannot be with you

         21  today, however, I appreciate the opportunity for my

         22  comments to be read into the hearing record. The

         23  City Council, particularly Council Member Lloyd

         24  Henry and this Committee, should be commended for

         25  efforts to improve our participation in the census.
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          2                 I cannot stress enough that we must

          3  continue to talk about the census so it stays in the

          4  forefront. As you know, the census will be the

          5  largest peace time mobilization ever undertaken by

          6  this country. Currently, in Washington the US

          7  Congress is reviewing census funding. In addition,

          8  Congress is looking at some suggestions from the

          9  majority, such as more advertising, more

         10  partnerships, more census education, more local

         11  government involvement, et cetera.

         12                 These additions to the census plan

         13  might help but they will not get rid of the large

         14  undercounts in our communities.

         15                 The last census in 1990 was the first

         16  census that did a worse job in counting people than

         17  the prior one.

         18                 The 1990 census had an error rate of

         19  over 10 percent. 8.4 million people were missed. 4.4

         20  million people were counted twice, and 13 million

         21  people were counted in the wrong place.

         22                 In New York City alone, 245,000

         23  people were missed in the 1990 census. As a result,

         24  we lost 500 million in federal aid and lost

         25  representation in the State Legislature. While the
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          2  undercount at the national level in 1990 was 1.6

          3  percent, in New York City, 3.2 percent of New

          4  Yorkers were missed. Since 1940, the Census Bureau

          5  has been studying the undercount in the census. We

          6  now know that the people missed in the census are

          7  most likely to be the urban and rural poor

          8  immigrants and minorities.

          9                 In 1990, the undercount of minorities

         10  was much worse than the 1.6 national average. The

         11  undercount for blacks was 4.4 percent. The

         12  undercount for Asians was 2.3 percent. The

         13  undercount for American Indians was 4.5 percent. And

         14  the undercount for Hispanics was the largest of all,

         15  5.0 percent. That is why the census is viewed as a

         16  civil rights issue of the decade.

         17                 The Census Bureau professionals have

         18  studied the census for over 40 years, have concluded

         19  that they should use modern scientific methods to

         20  correct the census for those undercounts.

         21                 In addition, National Academy of

         22  Science has stated this month for the fourth time

         23  that the best way to count the population is to use

         24  modern scientific methods.

         25                 I think the creation of a Temporary
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          2  Task Force on Census 2000 is necessary and I support

          3  this measure.

          4                 With regard to the specifics of your

          5  proposal, I agree that it is imperative for New York

          6  City communities to be educated about why the census

          7  is important.

          8                 In addition, your efforts will ensure

          9  that there are volunteers at questionnaire

         10  assistance centers, questionnaires in the right

         11  places, and questionnaires in the right languages.

         12  The census should be a partnership between the City

         13  and the Census Bureau to ensure that we obtain the

         14  most accurate possible count of New Yorkers.

         15                 The Task Force will be extremely

         16  helpful in ensuring that the census reaches as many

         17  people as we can. Unfortunately, I understand that

         18  the legislation before you does not speak to the use

         19  of scientific methods in the census.

         20                 New York City is seen as a leader in

         21  the fight for scientific census. New York City

         22  pioneered the 1980 and 1990 lawsuits, which

         23  attempted to get modern science into the census.

         24                 In 1998, I was pleased that Mayor

         25  Rudolph Giuliani followed this tradition by joining
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          2  the lawsuits to support statistical methods.

          3                 The recent Supreme Court decision

          4  upheld the scientific methods in several important

          5  areas. As you know, the census provides data that is

          6  used to allocate representatives among the states

          7  called apportionments, that determines how federal

          8  dollars are distributed and that enables states to

          9  draw district lines based on its interpretation of

         10  the statute, not on the constitutional grounds.

         11                 Supreme Court invalidated the use of

         12  statistical sampling for one purpose, apportionment.

         13  However, the court said statistical methods could be

         14  used for other extremely important purposes.

         15                 This modern method can be used to

         16  determine how federal funds are distributed and to

         17  draw district lines. Without modern scientific

         18  methods, Census 2000, just like its predecessor,

         19  will have large undercount of urban minorities,

         20  renters, children and the poor.

         21                 I hope that in addition to creating a

         22  task force, you will join me in supporting the most

         23  accurate census possible. It is certainly reasonable

         24  for us to rely on the opinion of the independent

         25  impartial scientists at the National Academy of
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          2  Science and nonpartisan professionals at the Census

          3  Bureau.

          4                 The experts say the plan devised by

          5  the professionals at the Census Bureau will give us

          6  the most accurate count. The fight to ensure that

          7  modern scientific methods are used in the census to

          8  correct for those undercounts cannot be lost.

          9                 Additionally, I have two small

         10  suggestions about how the Task Force can be

         11  strengthened. First, I would propose that the Task

         12  Force existence sunsets in the Year 2001, instead of

         13  in 2000.

         14                 Although the initial count will be

         15  completed in April 2000, non-response follow-up will

         16  continue over the summer. Additionally, census

         17  takers will go out into the community during the

         18  summer and fall to check to make sure data is

         19  accurate. The numbers will be tabulated in the fall,

         20  but only numbers that will be available at the end

         21  of 2000 will be apportionment numbers. Block level

         22  numbers will not be released until Spring 2001.

         23                 We will need the Task Force to be

         24  able to stay in existence until through 2001 to

         25  review the data that the census provides. Since
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          2  localities understand best how populations are

          3  distributed, government agencies, such as the Task

          4  Force, will be consulted to make sure that block

          5  level numbers accurately reflect the community. Your

          6  input at that point in time could be vital in

          7  ensuring that New York City receives its fair share

          8  of dollars and representation.

          9                 Second, I suggest that the Task Force

         10  issues a final report once it has completed its work

         11  to review the quality of decennial census in New

         12  York City. It should provide detail about what

         13  happened, how the City and the Census Bureau can

         14  interact better, what went right, what went wrong,

         15  how can we improve the initial preparation, the best

         16  approaches to reach out to particular communities

         17  and other useful information. The report would

         18  become an invaluable roadmap to the future census.

         19                 Because of the lengthy amount of time

         20  that elapses between censuses, too often the lessons

         21  learned in one census are forgotten by the time the

         22  next census rolls around.

         23                 The Task Force report would preserve

         24  knowledge and help ensure that the following census

         25  benefits from the things we have learned over the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            76

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  next few years.

          3                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          4  testify. I look forward to working with you on this

          5  most urgent matter.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you for

          8  your testimony and your patience, and we appreciate

          9  your testimony.

         10                 MR. MONTESINOS: Thank you, Madame

         11  Chair.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: And please

         13  convey to the Congresswoman our appreciation --

         14                 MR. MONTESINOS: Absolutely.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:-- For her

         16  support and taking the time and effort to submit her

         17  testimony at this hearing.

         18                 MR. MONTESINOS: Absolutely. Thank

         19  you, Madame Chair, and members of the Committee.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you.

         21                 Glenn D. Magpantay. Am I saying this

         22  correctly or incorrectly? Tell me how close or how

         23  far I am away.

         24                 Okay, please identify yourself by

         25  name and title and organization.
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          2                 MR. MAGPANTAY: Glenn D. Magpantay. I

          3  am staff attorney and director of the Democracy

          4  Project of the Asian-American Legal Defense and

          5  Education Fund.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Okay, thank you.

          7                 MR. MAGPANTAY: I have prepared

          8  written testimony, I am going to use that as a

          9  guide, but you all can look at it afterward if you

         10  all like, and maybe I can just give some comments

         11  based on the testimony and then answer other

         12  questions.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: You will be

         14  blessed indeed.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 MR. MAGPANTAY: The Asian-American

         17  Legal Defense Fund was founded 25 years ago, and we

         18  are the first organization on the East Coast

         19  representing and advocating for the civil rights of

         20  Asian-Americans through litigation, community

         21  education and legal advocacy.

         22                 We lodged a census program earlier,

         23  late last year to ensure that there would be an

         24  accurate count of Asian-Americans.

         25                 Our program includes litigation,
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          2  policy, advocacy and community education. We have

          3  already represented Asian-American New Yorkers

          4  before the United States Supreme Court in the

          5  decision that was rendered earlier this year on the

          6  issue of sampling. We testified at Mr. Henry's

          7  Committee on Immigration late last year and applaud

          8  him in those efforts, brought to the attention of

          9  the Census Bureau Director, officials in the White

         10  House, the Justice Department, as well as the

         11  Comment Department, concerns that we have over the

         12  confidentiality of census information. Tony

         13  Farthing, the Regional Director, mentioned that and

         14  I will answer that, if members of this Committee

         15  would like me to discuss them.

         16                 Just a reality check. We know that if

         17  there is an undercount again the Asian-American

         18  community will lose out on our fair share of state

         19  funds and social services and political

         20  representation.

         21                 Ms. Pinkett, you had asked what is

         22  the impact in New York. We know from a report

         23  released by the Children's Defense Fund in

         24  Washington, D.C., that New York City lost 99 schools

         25  and 4,380 teachers that would have been built (sic).
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          2  We wonder how many of these schools would have been

          3  built and how many more teachers would have been

          4  hired in minority communities representing

          5  Asian-Americans, Latino and African-American

          6  communities.

          7                 I think Tony Farthing had spoken

          8  about this, many efforts and many programs to do

          9  bilingual outreach. On this proposal we

         10  wholeheartedly support the proposal, and Intro. 457,

         11  the establishment of a Task Force on the Census.  We

         12  only want to underscore three issues for this

         13  Committee to consider as you move the piece of

         14  legislation forward.

         15                 First, we would like to ask the

         16  Committee or the Task Force to recognize that

         17  advancing policy issues to the administration of the

         18  census is absolutely critical.

         19                 This task force can bring critical

         20  issues of confidentiality, of the undercount of

         21  these of sampling, to the public fore. It is an

         22  appropriate role of this task force. They can bring

         23  it to the attention of high level officials in

         24  Washington, D.C., and the Census Bureau, this

         25  Council can do that type of work and we encourage
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          2  you all to think about that.

          3                 The other items, recognizing that

          4  community-based organizations who will be doing

          5  their own work on census, and census outreach, need

          6  monetary support, and that the heads of

          7  community-based organizations, in addition to heads,

          8  representatives from the Borough Presidents, need to

          9  be enfranchised.

         10                 Community-based organizations play a

         11  unique role in the development of the City, and that

         12  they can ensure an accurate and complete count.

         13                 I would actually say that

         14  community-based organizations know their immigrant

         15  neighborhoods better than any Washington bureaucrat,

         16  focus group or local community specialist that their

         17  bureau might hire, even with the billions and

         18  billions of dollars -- millions and millions of

         19  dollars that the Census Bureau had in the army of

         20  enumerators, we will still know Chinatown and Sunset

         21  Park in Flushing better than anybody else. And my

         22  colleagues in the African-American community and

         23  Latino community know the same.

         24                 We do applaud the work of the Mayor's

         25  Committee and Mr. Tony Farthing. Tony I think has
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          2  been a leader and worked very hard to ensure that

          3  there is an accurate count.

          4                 When we talk about some of the policy

          5  issues that this Committee should consider, Ms.

          6  Maloney's representative talked about the use of

          7  sampling, statistical sampling to ensure that

          8  undercounts, as well as overcounts, are mitigated.

          9                 Tony talked about the strength of the

         10  confidentiality provision. There is a concern that

         11  while the bureau says its census information is

         12  confidential, we, as attorneys, have looked at the

         13  same laws that the Attorney Generals have looked at

         14  and have found that the immigrational form of 1996

         15  may compromise a confidentiality of such

         16  information.

         17                 We have asked the Bureau and the

         18  Attorney General of the United States, to develop an

         19  advisory opinion and instruct to their officials to

         20  the president whether such information is

         21  confidential. An opinion is expected shortly.

         22                 But we will still use the standard of

         23  what will satisfy a court of law. In the event that

         24  the INS seeks census information to find the

         25  whereabouts of a documented immigrant, and I believe
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          2  Census Bureau would say no, they would sue in court.

          3  And in that event, without more, we believe that INS

          4  has an entitlement to this information and the

          5  Census Bureau would lose. We need a change in the

          6  law to try to rectify the situation.

          7                 The Attorney General is making a

          8  statement and an opinion and we look forward to

          9  that.

         10                 The paid advertising campaign must be

         11  dialect specific and culturally sensitive. People

         12  must understand how to answer questions on English

         13  proficiency for the purposes of making Korean

         14  bilingual ballots and voting materials available.

         15  The tabulation of multi-racial responses, and this

         16  is something that the Bureau won't talk about, but

         17  we will, now people can check off more than one form

         18  to identify their racial and ethnic categories that

         19  find there are multi-racial bi-racial people in our

         20  community. The reality, though, is we are concerned

         21  that a tabulation method of these communities will

         22  say that all numbers of communities of color will go

         23  down - African-American, Latino, Asian-American,

         24  Native American are less because of this

         25  multi-racial category.
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          2                 Thus, civil rights organizations, and

          3  we, oppose the creation of a multi-racial category.

          4  The question, though, is you can't just knock them

          5  out, you have to put them back in, and where do you

          6  put them in? Where do you reallocate?

          7                 And there are many proposals, this is

          8  a controversial issue amongst, within our community,

          9  and between communities. We are working hard with

         10  the NAACP Legal Defense and Education Fund, NAACP,

         11  the Mexican-American Legal Defense Fund, the Puerto

         12  Rican Legal Defense Fund and many other civil rights

         13  groups that you all can think of in Washington DC

         14  and New York to try to work out a consensus on this

         15  issue, so that none of us will be mischaracterized.

         16                 A moratorium on INS raids. You all

         17  can't -- the Bureau can't send enumerators out to

         18  communities and then do a raid and say, you know,

         19  this type of information is confidential, and then

         20  INS agents go there and look for the undocumented

         21  immigrants. That is a problem and an inconsistency.

         22                 Our communities, our immigrant

         23  communities don't make a difference, don't

         24  differentiate between INS agents and census

         25  enumerators. The oath means nothing. There are
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          2  federal employees asking questions and who lives

          3  there. That is a fear and a concern.

          4                 This Committee, this Council, and

          5  this Task Force can bring that issue to fore.

          6                 I am just going to skip over to just

          7  two, three other points.

          8                 Monetary funds for community-based

          9  organizations. We know that in the state of

         10  California the Speaker has already come out and said

         11  in the Los Angeles Times that they are thinking of

         12  allocating $30 million for community-based groups to

         13  do your census outreach and advertising.

         14                 We need to do the same and look to

         15  that work. Our community-based organizations are

         16  strapped for funds, and they need support. It is a

         17  wonderful thing that this Committee, that this Task

         18  Force in the bill will actually look at that.

         19                 Additionally, the heads of

         20  community-based organizations need to be represented

         21  on the Task Force. We are very pleased that there is

         22  a provision that allows and invites the

         23  participation of non-for-profit organizations, but I

         24  can tell you, because our program works in New

         25  Jersey and Massachusetts, that in New Jersey being
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          2  the example, there are two committees, one in Hudson

          3  County, one in Jersey City. Hudson County only

          4  includes governmental employees, and I am very

          5  afraid of the undercount of Asian-American, Latino

          6  communities there.

          7                 Newark is not the same. Newark is

          8  more enlightened and has been willing to enfranchise

          9  not only governmental officials and social service

         10  agencies, but also heads of community organizations.

         11  That count will be that much stronger.

         12                 I think New York needs to look at

         13  some of the things that happened in other states,

         14  recognize that there are some things that are good

         15  things there that we can do too to make sure that we

         16  will become and representative of the greatest City

         17  in the United States and not stepped on by other

         18  municipalities.

         19                 Anyway, in conclusion, we will work

         20  closely with this Task Force. We will work closely

         21  with the Council and this Committee. We thank you

         22  for your time and, again, we urge for some of the

         23  changes to the proposal to only strengthen, not

         24  criticize the bill, and hope for its speedy

         25  enactment.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you for

          3  your testimony.

          4                 Are there any questions? Okay, thank

          5  you very, very much.

          6                 Any other witnesses?

          7                 Is there anyone holding a witness

          8  appearance ticket who wishes to offer testimony at

          9  this time?

         10                 Is there anyone who wishes to offer

         11  testimony who has an appearance ticket? Anyone?

         12  Going once, twice. Anyone who wishes to testify?

         13                 The Chair of the Subcommittee, would

         14  you like to make a statement?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: Yes, Madame

         16  Chair.

         17                 First, I would like to commend you

         18  for convening the most important hearing on the

         19  issue of Census 2000, and also other members of this

         20  Committee for their input.

         21                 While I would like also to applaud

         22  the Mayor for what he has done thus far in this

         23  respect, I would also like to remind this Committee

         24  that the Mayor's Interagency Council has no

         25  statutory obligation to report its efforts and
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          2  findings to the Council, who, in their estimation,

          3  should be playing such an important role.

          4                 Our bill, and I am just saying this

          5  for the record, that our bill mandates a reporting

          6  mechanism to the Mayor and to the Council, so they

          7  are fully informed of the Task Force's work and

          8  progress.

          9                 Our bill will also involve by law the

         10  offices of the Comptroller and Public Advocate, who

         11  are only consulted at the discretion of the current

         12  interagency council.

         13                 And lastly, I would like to thank the

         14  Borough President from the Borough of Manhattan, for

         15  her input and also to make mention of the fact that

         16  her point is well taken, that there be

         17  representations on the Task Force from the Borough

         18  level. And I would be prepared to recommend that we

         19  make such an amendment to this legislation.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you. I

         22  would certainly not want to ignore your

         23  recommendations. It would appear to me that this is

         24  something that would have to be discussed. We have

         25  indeed to contend with or deal with the fact that we
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          2  are dealing with a mighty Mayor who has by

          3  administrative fiat taken unto himself much of the

          4  legislative recommendations that was encompassed in

          5  the proposed legislation and has chosen to use it in

          6  terms of his executive order, whether the Council

          7  has an authority, and I don't think this has been

          8  done before, and that is a matter that has to be

          9  looked at and determined, and I think to be very

         10  open we will do this, we will look at this matter.

         11                 I think the most important thing is

         12  that we have begun hearings. We should continue on

         13  the process of the Census and the hearings with this

         14  bill as an impetus. So that this matter will not

         15  disappear. And in the interim we will discuss this,

         16  and I know you will with the Speaker as well, and we

         17  will then discuss where we go from here with this

         18  legislation and I think we ought to do that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: I just amend my

         20  last statement by saying that whatever

         21  recommendations were received, especially by the

         22  Borough President of the Borough of Manhattan, will

         23  be taken under advisement.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: I would say that

         25  any recommendations certainly would be. I think it
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          2  is wise always to include with representation beyond

          3  the immediate appointments of the Mayor or the

          4  Council, that is the wisest thing. If you expand the

          5  input, you can only strengthen the legislation, and

          6  that is what you are doing by saying that the

          7  Borough President recommends a representative. We

          8  usually do that by having even the Council recommend

          9  people for appointment to task force, at various

         10  times it gives us I think additional strength, it

         11  adds to the mobility or the strength of the Council

         12  and of the Task Force by having additional voices

         13  heard on this legislation, but it does not in any

         14  way dilute the authority of the legislation. It does

         15  not take away from the fact that this Council

         16  created legislation that is beneficial to the City

         17  of New York.

         18                 On that note, let us now conclude by

         19  saying this Committee on Governmental Operation is

         20  over. Thank you.

         21                 (Hearing concluded at 3:30 p.m.)

         22

         23

         24

         25
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 25th day of May 1999.
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                                   ---------------------
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         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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